
Licensing Committee 
Agenda

Wyre Borough Council
Date of Publication: 17 January 2018

Please ask for : Carole Leary
Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01253 887444

Licensing Committee meeting on Thursday, 25 January 2018 at 6.00 pm
in the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Poulton-le-Fylde

1.  Apologies

2.  Declarations of Interest

Members will disclose any pecuniary and any other significant interests 
they may have in relation to the matters under consideration.

3.  Confirmation of minutes (Pages 1 - 18)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Licensing Committee held on 30 November 2017 and 6 December 
2017.

4.  Taxi Licensing and Enforcement Policy Review (Pages 19 - 86)

Report of the Service Director Health and Wellbeing.

5.  Exclusion of the Public and Press

In accordance with Paragraph 11 of the Access to Information Rules in 
Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive has 
determined that the report submitted under item 6 of this agenda is 
“Not for Publication” because item 6 contains “exempt information”, as 
defined in Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

If the Committee agrees that the public and press should be excluded 
for this item, it will need to pass the following resolution:-

“That the public and press be excluded from the meeting whilst agenda 
item 6 is being considered, because it refers to exempt information as 
defined in category 1 (information relating to any individual) of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12(a) of the Local Government Act, 1972, as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to Information) Variation Order 2006 
and, that the public interest in maintaining the exemptions outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information.

Public Document Pack



6.  New applicant for a Wyre dual driver licence with a current 
motoring conviction and spent criminal convictions

(Pages 87 - 
106)

Report of the Service Director Health and Wellbeing.



Licensing Committee Minutes 

The minutes of the Licensing Committee meeting of Wyre Borough Council held on 
Thursday, 30 November 2017 at the Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Poulton-le-Fylde.

Licensing Committee members present:
Councillors Simon Bridge, Sue Catterall, Terry Lees, Julie Robinson, Brian Stephenson, 
Ann Turner, Lynn Walmsley and Val Wilson

Apologies:
Councillor(s) Marge Anderton, Colette Birch, Patsy Ormrod, Sue Pimbley and Matthew 
Vincent

Officers present:
Niky Barrett, Licensing Manager
Mary Grimshaw, Senior Solicitor and Deputy Monitoring Officer
David Parry, Taxi Licensing Officer
Neil Greenwood, Head of Environmental Health and Community Safety
Duncan Jowitt, Democratic Services and Councillor Development Officer

Others present: 

For item 7 only: Mr C and Mrs C

For item 6 only: Mr O (driver and Mr W (representing the driver)

For item 8 only: Mr OS

For item 9 only: Mr FS

No members of the public or press were present. 

31 Confirmation of minutes 

The minutes of the meetings held on 12 October 2017 were confirmed as a 
correct record.

32 Declarations of Interest 

Councillor Lees declared an interest in item 7 of the agenda as a close 
relative knew the applicant and did not take part in the committee’s questions 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



or deliberations in respect of that item.

33 Review of Premises Licence - Today's Local, 92 Lord Street, Fleetwood, 
FY7 6JZ 

The Service Director Health and Wellbeing submitted a report to provide 
members of the Licensing Committee with information to assist members to 
determine an application from Lancashire Constabulary, submitted under 
section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act), seeking a review of Premises 
Licence PL(A)0391, in respect of Today’s Local, 92 Lord Street, Fleetwood, 
FY7 6JZ.

RESOLVED that, as the licensee was unable to attend the meeting due to 
illness, the application from Lancashire Constabulary be adjourned and 
considered on Wednesday 6 December by a sub-committee made up of three 
members of the Licensing Committee.

34 Exclusion of the Public and Press 

RESOLVED that the public and press be excluded from the meeting whilst 
agenda items 6, 7 8 and 9 were being considered, because they referred to 
exempt information as defined in category 1 (information relating to any 
individual) of Part 1 of Schedule 12(a) of the Local Government Act, 1972, as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Variation Order 
2006 and, that the public interest in maintaining the exemptions outweighed 
the public interest in disclosing the information.

35 New applicant for a Wyre dual driver licence with spent convictions 

The Service Director Health and Wellbeing submitted a report to provide 
members of the Licensing Committee with information to assist them at a 
hearing.

The Licensing Manager introduced the report.

The applicant, Mr C was present at the meeting and was accompanied by his 
wife. He was not legally represented.

Mr C spoke to the committee to explain the circumstances in his defence.

Mr C responded to questions from members of the Committee.

Mr C and Mrs C, the Taxi Licensing Officer, the Head of Environmental 
Health and Community Safety and the Licensing Manager then left the room 
whilst the committee members considered the application. The Licensing 
Committee then reconvened and the Chairman announced the Committee’s 
decision. 

RESOLVED that a dual driver licence be granted to Mr C.

Page 2



The Reasons for the Decisions were: 

After listening to the applicant, the Committee considered that he was a fit 
and proper person to hold a Dual Driver’s Licence as he had been free of 
convictions for a substantial period of time and had made a concerted effort to 
turn his life around from his earlier criminal behaviours. 

36 Complaints about a licensed Wyre dual driver licence holder (item 6) 

The Service Director Health and Wellbeing submitted a report to provide 
members of the Licensing Committee with information to assist them at a 
hearing. Additional letters of support for the driver which had been received 
after the agenda had been compiled were also submitted to the Committee.

The Licensing Manager introduced the report.

The driver, Mr O, was present at the meeting and was legally represented by 
Mr W.

Mr W spoke to the committee to explain the circumstances in his defence.

Mr W responded to questions from members of the Committee.

Mr O and Mr W, the Taxi Licensing Officer, the Head of Environmental Health 
and Community Safety and the Licensing Manager then left the room whilst 
the committee members considered the case. The Licensing Committee then 
reconvened and the Chairman announced the Committee’s decision. 

RESOLVED that Mr O’s dual driver licence be suspended for a period of 
seven days.

The Reasons for the Decisions were: 

 The Committee did not believe Mr O to be a credible witness in relation 
to the female passengers whose safety he claimed to be concerned 
about and considered that the use of an unlicensed vehicle held 
serious implications for public safety. The Committee considered that 
other arrangements with taxi firms could have been made and Mr O 
should have refused to take the female passengers.

 In respect of the 3 September 2017 incident, the Committee 
considered that   Mr’s O driving and duty of care fell below the required 
standard expected of Wyre licensed drivers 

 The Committee considered that Mr O’s actions warranted a sanction to 
ensure that his conduct will not be repeated and considered that it was 
proportionate and reasonable to suspend his licence for 7 days. 
However members of the committee felt that a harsher punishment 
was not warranted in the circumstances and decided not to 
recommend prosecution.

Page 3



37 Application for a dual driver licence with declared motoring offences 

The Service Director Health and Wellbeing submitted a report to provide 
members of the Licensing Committee with information to assist them at a 
hearing.

The Licensing Manager introduced the report.

The applicant, Mr OS, was present at the meeting.

Mr OS spoke to the committee to explain the circumstances in his defence.

Mr OS responded to questions from members of the Committee.

Mr OS, the Taxi Licensing Officer, the Head of Environmental Health and 
Community Safety and the Licensing Manager then left the room whilst the 
committee members considered the application. The Licensing Committee 
then reconvened and the Chairman announced the Committee’s decision. 

RESOLVED that the application submitted by Mr OS be refused.

The Reasons for the Decisions were: 

 The applicant currently had 9 points on his driving licence and the 
Committee after listening to the applicant, did not fully accept his 
explanation for his lapse in motor insurance and considered his 
conviction for driving without insurance to be too serious an offence to 
consider issuing a dual driver licence at this time. 

 Wyre licensed drivers have a responsible role and are required to 
display a professional standard of driving, having a total regard and 
respect for all road and traffic regulations. The members were 
concerned that as the applicant already had 9 points on his licence he 
was not able to demonstrate to the Committee’s satisfaction that he 
would take this responsibility seriously enough. 

 Accordingly, the Committee were not satisfied that the applicant was a 
fit and proper person to be a licence holder in Wyre.

38 New applicant for a Wyre dual driver licence with recent criminal 
convictions 

The Service Director Health and Wellbeing submitted a report to provide 
members of the Licensing Committee with information to assist them at a 
hearing.

The Licensing Manager introduced the report.

The applicant, Mr FS, was present at the meeting.

Page 4



Mr FS spoke to the committee to explain the circumstances of the incident 
convictions.

Mr FS responded to questions from members of the Committee

Mr FS, the Taxi Licensing Officer, the Head of Environmental Health and 
Community Safety and the Licensing Manager then left the room whilst the 
committee members considered the application. The Licensing Committee 
then reconvened and the Chairman announced the Committee’s decision. 

RESOLVED that the application submitted by Mr FS be refused.

The Reasons for the Decisions were: 

 The Committee were not satisfied that the applicant was a fit and 
proper person to be a licence holder in Wyre at this present time. 

 It was felt that the applicant’s recent convictions of battery and 
damaging property earlier in the year were too serious and too recent 
to consider granting a dual driver licence at this time

Minutes of meeting 6 December 2017

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and finished at 8.55 pm.

Date of Publication: 13 December 2017

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

Licensing Sub-Committee minutes 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee made up of three members of the 
Licensing Committee of Wyre Borough Council held on Wednesday 6 December 2017 at the 
Civic Centre, Poulton-le-Fylde. 
 
This meeting was a continuation of the Licensing Committee meeting of 30 November 2017 
at which the item Review of Premises Licence – Today’s Local, 92 Lord Street, Fleetwood, 
FY7 6JZ was adjourned because the licensee was unable to attend due to illness. 
 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee members present:  
 
Councillor Bridge (Chairman) 
Councillor Catterall 
Councillor Ormrod 
 
Officers present:  
 
Mary Grimshaw, Senior Solicitor 
Neil Greenwood, Head of Environmental Health and Community Safety 
Niky Barrett, Licensing Manager 
Simon Clark, Environmental Health Officer 
Mandy Seddon, Environmental Health Officer (non-participant) 
Duncan Jowitt, Democratic Services Officer 
 
Others present:  
 
Helen Parkinson, Lancashire Police 
Lauren Manning, Lancashire County Council (LCC) Trading Standards 
Andrea Forrest, Forrest Solicitors (representing the Premises Licence Holder) 
Arumugan Kalamohan (Premises Licence Holder) 
Nathan Niroshan (Mohan Retail Group) 
Devenanden Diraj (Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS)) 
 
No members of the public or press were present.  
 

 
LIC. 39 
 

Declarations of interest 
 
None 
 

  

Page 1

Minute Annex 

Page 7



LIC. 40 
 

Review of Premises Licence – Today’s Local, 92 Lord Street, Fleetwood, 
FY7 6JZ  
 
The Service Director Health and Wellbeing submitted a report to provide 
members of the Licensing Committee with information to assist members to 
determine an application from Lancashire Constabulary, submitted under 
section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act), seeking a review of Premises 
Licence PL(A)0391, in respect of Today’s Local, 92 Lord Street, Fleetwood, 
FY7 6JZ. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder, Mr Kalamohan, was present at the meeting 
along with Mr Diraj, the current DPS, and Mr Niroshan of Mohan Retail Group. 
Mr Kalamohan was legally represented by Ms. Forrest. 
 
Before the meeting was able to start, Ms. Forrest had asked if supporting 
evidence, which she had emailed to one of Wyre’s licensing officers earlier that 
afternoon, could be photocopied and admitted as evidence. As a result the 
commencement of the meeting was delayed until the documentation had been 
copied. When the meeting began, the Chairman explained that, although it was 
important that it was seen to be a fair hearing and that all facts were taken into 
account, he was very uncomfortable with the late submission of documents. As 
none of the Responsible Authorities raised any objection to the admission of 
the evidence, the Chairman then asked Mr. Kalamohan, Mr. Niroshan, Mr. 
Diraj, Ms. Forrest, the Head of Environmental Health and Community Safety, 
Environmental Health Officers, Licensing Manager and representatives of the 
Responsible Authorities to leave the room whilst the sub-committee considered 
whether to allow the evidence to be taken into account. 
 
When the sub-committee reconvened at 7pm the Chairman announced that, 
despite having serious reservations that the papers should have been made 
available in advance to allow them to be read in full, the additional evidence 
would be admitted and Ms. Forrest could circulate it at the appropriate time.  
 
Cllr Bridge asked whether all of the Responsible Authorities had sent a 
representative to the meeting and the Licensing Manager informed him that 
apologies had been received from Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service. 
 
The Licensing Manager then introduced the report and the Chairman offered 
an opportunity for all participants to ask questions.  
 
Next, the police representative gave a detailed statement outlining their 
concerns. During the opportunity for participants to ask questions of the police 
it was confirmed that the police believed that the premises licence should be 
revoked. 
 
Further evidence was then presented by the representative of LCC Trading 
Standards which focussed on the discovery of bottles of vodka on the premises 
which had been found to have counterfeit labels and had been smuggled into 
the country, which was a very serious matter and that customs had been 
notified. This was again followed by an opportunity for questions.  

Page 2Page 8



 
The Environmental Health Officer then set out his concerns for public safety, 
particularly following an explosion caused by the proximity of a heater to gas 
canisters which had caused injury to an employee. An investigation was 
currently underway and he said that the premises had been lacking in a 
number of ways under the Health and Safety at Work Act including having no 
risk assessment in regard to hazardous substances. He confirmed that 
Environmental Health also supported the police in calling for revocation of the 
licence.  
 
With the consent of the sub-committee, the Head of Environmental Health and 
Community Safety presented the information submitted by Lancashire Fire and 
Rescue Service. Their involvement followed the canister explosion mentioned 
previously that had resulted in a projectile causing a lower leg injury to an 
employee. After meeting with staff and discussing issues, it was found that 
there were no fire risk assessments and the distance between the shop and 
accommodation was also found to be inadequate. An enforcement notice had 
been issued to address the issues and the premises had been provided with an 
action plan and it was understood that a fire alarm had recently been installed. 
 
The Licensing Officer then summed up the case and confirmed the Licensing 
Authority’s agreement with the police in seeking a full revocation of the 
premises licence. 
 
Ms. Forrest then spoke to the committee in the owner’s defence, expressing 
surprise at the call for revocation from all of the Responsible Authorities as her 
understanding was that the police were asking for conditions to be added to the 
licence. Her subsequent explanation of the mitigating circumstances centred 
on the fact that a different DPS, Richard Anthonys, was in place when the 
failed tests took place and that the onus had been on that previous DPS to 
comply as he had been given full responsibility for running the business. It was 
Mr Anthonys, she said, that had failed to provide training to staff and not the 
licence holder, who owned about 20 shops. She stated that good due diligence 
training was now taking place and formal training for staff was now provided by 
Under Age Sales Limited. She also queried whether there had been other 
successful test purchases that had been successful of which the premises 
were not informed as a test purchase by Camelot was known to have been 
successful. 
 
Ms. Forrest circulated a number of documents in support of her evidence 
including: 
 

 Fire Risk Assessment, 
 COSSH compliance 
 Contract of Employment between Mohan Retail Limited and Nathan 

Lester,  
 Details of  training 
 Letter from Camelot  confirming a successful test purchase from 

Camelot 
 ICO letter regarding data protection renewal registration,  

Page 3Page 9



 Management agreement between Mohan Retail Limited and Mr 
Richard Napolean Anthonys,  

 HSE refresher training confirmation, 
 Premises age verification policy,  
 Licensing training checklist/ Refusals register and 
 Images of signs on the premises 

 
The Chairman then invited questions to be asked of the Premises Licence 
Holder and his legal representative and Ms. Forrest, Mr. Kalamohan, Mr. 
Niroshan and Mr. Diraj responded to a series of questions from members of the 
sub-committee and the representatives of the Responsible Authorities. 
 
All participants who were not involved in considering the decision were then 
asked to leave during the sub-committee‘s deliberations. Only the members of 
the sub-committee, the senior solicitor and the democratic services officer 
remained in the room whilst the case was considered.  
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee then reconvened and the Chairman announced 
the decision.  
 
RESOLVED that the licence for Today’s Local be revoked. 
 
The reasons for the decision were: 

1. The Committee were satisfied from evidence provided by the police, 
Trading Standards and the Licensing Authority that numerous attempts 
had been made in the past to encourage the management of the 
premises to introduce effective staff training and implement a challenge 
25 policy. Despite repeated warnings, the premises were still found to be 
operating in breach of the licence conditions and had general 
compliance issues as evidenced by the two earlier failed test purchases 
and the lack of a suitable policy in 2016 to prevent underage sales, a 
further failed test purchase in September 2017 and a later unscheduled 
visit that revealed a failure to adhere to the licence conditions. The 
Committee were satisfied having regard to these repeated failures that 
the Licensing Objective for the protection of children from harm was 
being undermined. 
 

2. The Committee heard from Ms Forrest, that a different DPS, Richard 
Anthonys was in place when the failed test purchases took place. She 
said that Mr. Anthonys was responsible for the running of the premises 
and referred to the management agreement he had signed which she 
said operated like a franchise agreement and stated that the PLH had 
exercised due diligence.  She also referred to the general improvement 
in the management of the premises with the recent appointment of an 
experienced DPS and referred to the training that had been undertaken 
and the procedures that were in place. She expressed surprise at the 
request for revocation as her understanding was that the police were 
asking for conditions to be added which the PLH had agreed to. 
However, the Committee considered that Mr. Kalamohan, as the 
Premises Licence Holder was ultimately responsible for the premises 

Page 4Page 10



and found that there had been little improvement since the failed test 
purchase failure in 2013.  The Committee considered that the premises 
were poorly managed and there was a general lack of compliance 
associated with the premises. The Committee were satisfied that  there 
was a discernible pattern of behaviour whereby no clear responsibility 
had been taken by the PLH and that he was passing off his 
responsibility to the DPS when in fact it was ultimately his responsibility 
to uphold the Licensing Objectives for the licensed premises. 
 

3. The Committee heard that despite having been advised in writing in 
2011, that a fire risk assessment must be undertaken, the premises had 
failed to address these issues until an incident occurred in September 
2017 resulting in serious injury to a member of staff, which required him 
to have surgery. The Committee noted Mr Clark’s submission that the 
incident highlighted health and safety non- compliance issues and also 
revealed the unclear lines of responsibility for health and safety within 
the company. The Committee considered that these failings also 
potentially exposed members of the public to hazard and undermined 
the public safety objective. 

 
4. The Committee heard evidence from Ms Manning that 37 smuggled 

vodka bottles had been found on the premises in February 2016. The 
bottles were found to have counterfeit labels to avoid payment of excise 
duty which the Committee considered to be very serious. The 
Committee were concerned that the premises were being used for the 
sale or storage of smuggled alcohol and were satisfied that the crime 
prevention objective was being undermined. The Committee were not 
satisfied with the PLH’s explanation that the bottles were the 
responsibility of Mr Richard Anthonys, the previous DPS, as it was noted 
that Mr. Kalamohan, had signed a form agreeing to transfer the goods to 
Trading Standards for destruction and ultimately Mr Kalamohan, as the 
Premises Licence Holder was responsible for ensuring compliance with 
the Licensing Objectives. 

 
5. The Committee after having considered all of the information were 

satisfied that the premises, Today’s Local were not upholding the 
Licensing Objectives relating to the Prevention of Crime and Disorder, 
Protection of Children from Harm and Public Safety. The Committee 
decided that given the previous failed test purchases, the activity 
relating to the smuggled vodka bottles, the failure to comply with health 
and safety and fire safety legislative requirements and   the general lack 
of compliance and cooperation with the Responsible Authorities over a 
number of years that revocation was appropriate for the promotion of the 
Licensing Objectives and was proportionate.  

 
6. The Committee considered that the removal of the DPS was not an 

appropriate option, as Mr Devenanden Diraj had only been recently 
appointed and the Committee were satisfied that Mr Kalamohan as PLH 
had overall control and responsibility for the premises.  
 

Page 5Page 11



7. The Committee also considered that a suspension of the licence was 
not an appropriate option as the recurring failings associated with the 
premises were longstanding and a short period of closure would not fix 
these issues.  
 

8. The Committee noted the police’s total lack of confidence in the 
Premises Licence Holder in running the premises which was supported 
by the other Responsible Authorities and considered that none of the 
other options available on review would resolve the problems associated 
with the premises and were not appropriate in the circumstances. 

 
 The meeting started at 6.45pm and finished at 9.15pm 

 
Date of publication: 13 December 2017 
 

 
 
arm/rg/lic/mi/061217 

Page 6Page 12



 

Licensing Sub-Committee minutes 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee made up of three members of the 
Licensing Committee of Wyre Borough Council held on Wednesday 6 December 2017 at the 
Civic Centre, Poulton-le-Fylde. 
 
This meeting was a continuation of the Licensing Committee meeting of 30 November 2017 
at which the item Review of Premises Licence – Today’s Local, 92 Lord Street, Fleetwood, 
FY7 6JZ was adjourned because the licensee was unable to attend due to illness. 
 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee members present:  
 
Councillor Bridge (Chairman) 
Councillor Catterall 
Councillor Ormrod 
 
Officers present:  
 
Mary Grimshaw, Senior Solicitor 
Neil Greenwood, Head of Environmental Health and Community Safety 
Niky Barrett, Licensing Manager 
Simon Clark, Environmental Health Officer 
Mandy Seddon, Environmental Health Officer (non-participant) 
Duncan Jowitt, Democratic Services Officer 
 
Others present:  
 
Helen Parkinson, Lancashire Police 
Lauren Manning, Lancashire County Council (LCC) Trading Standards 
Andrea Forrest, Forrest Solicitors (representing the Premises Licence Holder) 
Arumugan Kalamohan (Premises Licence Holder) 
Nathan Niroshan (Mohan Retail Group) 
Devenanden Diraj (Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS)) 
 
No members of the public or press were present.  
 

 
LIC. 39 
 

Declarations of interest 
 
None 
 

  

Page 13



LIC. 40 
 

Review of Premises Licence – Today’s Local, 92 Lord Street, Fleetwood, 
FY7 6JZ  
 
The Service Director Health and Wellbeing submitted a report to provide 
members of the Licensing Committee with information to assist members to 
determine an application from Lancashire Constabulary, submitted under 
section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act), seeking a review of Premises 
Licence PL(A)0391, in respect of Today’s Local, 92 Lord Street, Fleetwood, 
FY7 6JZ. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder, Mr Kalamohan, was present at the meeting 
along with Mr Diraj, the current DPS, and Mr Niroshan of Mohan Retail Group. 
Mr Kalamohan was legally represented by Ms. Forrest. 
 
Before the meeting was able to start, Ms. Forrest had asked if supporting 
evidence, which she had emailed to one of Wyre’s licensing officers earlier that 
afternoon, could be photocopied and admitted as evidence. As a result the 
commencement of the meeting was delayed until the documentation had been 
copied. When the meeting began, the Chairman explained that, although it was 
important that it was seen to be a fair hearing and that all facts were taken into 
account, he was very uncomfortable with the late submission of documents. As 
none of the Responsible Authorities raised any objection to the admission of 
the evidence, the Chairman then asked Mr. Kalamohan, Mr. Niroshan, Mr. 
Diraj, Ms. Forrest, the Head of Environmental Health and Community Safety, 
Environmental Health Officers, Licensing Manager and representatives of the 
Responsible Authorities to leave the room whilst the sub-committee considered 
whether to allow the evidence to be taken into account. 
 
When the sub-committee reconvened at 7pm the Chairman announced that, 
despite having serious reservations that the papers should have been made 
available in advance to allow them to be read in full, the additional evidence 
would be admitted and Ms. Forrest could circulate it at the appropriate time.  
 
Cllr Bridge asked whether all of the Responsible Authorities had sent a 
representative to the meeting and the Licensing Manager informed him that 
apologies had been received from Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service. 
 
The Licensing Manager then introduced the report and the Chairman offered 
an opportunity for all participants to ask questions.  
 
Next, the police representative gave a detailed statement outlining their 
concerns. During the opportunity for participants to ask questions of the police 
it was confirmed that the police believed that the premises licence should be 
revoked. 
 
Further evidence was then presented by the representative of LCC Trading 
Standards which focussed on the discovery of bottles of vodka on the premises 
which had been found to have counterfeit labels and had been smuggled into 
the country, which was a very serious matter and that customs had been 
notified. This was again followed by an opportunity for questions.  

Page 14



 
The Environmental Health Officer then set out his concerns for public safety, 
particularly following an explosion caused by the proximity of a heater to gas 
canisters which had caused injury to an employee. An investigation was 
currently underway and he said that the premises had been lacking in a 
number of ways under the Health and Safety at Work Act including having no 
risk assessment in regard to hazardous substances. He confirmed that 
Environmental Health also supported the police in calling for revocation of the 
licence.  
 
With the consent of the sub-committee, the Head of Environmental Health and 
Community Safety presented the information submitted by Lancashire Fire and 
Rescue Service. Their involvement followed the canister explosion mentioned 
previously that had resulted in a projectile causing a lower leg injury to an 
employee. After meeting with staff and discussing issues, it was found that 
there were no fire risk assessments and the distance between the shop and 
accommodation was also found to be inadequate. An enforcement notice had 
been issued to address the issues and the premises had been provided with an 
action plan and it was understood that a fire alarm had recently been installed. 
 
The Licensing Officer then summed up the case and confirmed the Licensing 
Authority’s agreement with the police in seeking a full revocation of the 
premises licence. 
 
Ms. Forrest then spoke to the committee in the owner’s defence, expressing 
surprise at the call for revocation from all of the Responsible Authorities as her 
understanding was that the police were asking for conditions to be added to the 
licence. Her subsequent explanation of the mitigating circumstances centred 
on the fact that a different DPS, Richard Anthonys, was in place when the 
failed tests took place and that the onus had been on that previous DPS to 
comply as he had been given full responsibility for running the business. It was 
Mr Anthonys, she said, that had failed to provide training to staff and not the 
licence holder, who owned about 20 shops. She stated that good due diligence 
training was now taking place and formal training for staff was now provided by 
Under Age Sales Limited. She also queried whether there had been other 
successful test purchases that had been successful of which the premises 
were not informed as a test purchase by Camelot was known to have been 
successful. 
 
Ms. Forrest circulated a number of documents in support of her evidence 
including: 
 

 Fire Risk Assessment, 
 COSSH compliance 
 Contract of Employment between Mohan Retail Limited and Nathan 

Lester,  
 Details of  training 
 Letter from Camelot  confirming a successful test purchase from 

Camelot 
 ICO letter regarding data protection renewal registration,  

Page 15



 Management agreement between Mohan Retail Limited and Mr 
Richard Napolean Anthonys,  

 HSE refresher training confirmation, 
 Premises age verification policy,  
 Licensing training checklist/ Refusals register and 
 Images of signs on the premises 

 
The Chairman then invited questions to be asked of the Premises Licence 
Holder and his legal representative and Ms. Forrest, Mr. Kalamohan, Mr. 
Niroshan and Mr. Diraj responded to a series of questions from members of the 
sub-committee and the representatives of the Responsible Authorities. 
 
All participants who were not involved in considering the decision were then 
asked to leave during the sub-committee‘s deliberations. Only the members of 
the sub-committee, the senior solicitor and the democratic services officer 
remained in the room whilst the case was considered.  
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee then reconvened and the Chairman announced 
the decision.  
 
RESOLVED that the licence for Today’s Local be revoked. 
 
The reasons for the decision were: 

1. The Committee were satisfied from evidence provided by the police, 
Trading Standards and the Licensing Authority that numerous attempts 
had been made in the past to encourage the management of the 
premises to introduce effective staff training and implement a challenge 
25 policy. Despite repeated warnings, the premises were still found to be 
operating in breach of the licence conditions and had general 
compliance issues as evidenced by the two earlier failed test purchases 
and the lack of a suitable policy in 2016 to prevent underage sales, a 
further failed test purchase in September 2017 and a later unscheduled 
visit that revealed a failure to adhere to the licence conditions. The 
Committee were satisfied having regard to these repeated failures that 
the Licensing Objective for the protection of children from harm was 
being undermined. 
 

2. The Committee heard from Ms Forrest, that a different DPS, Richard 
Anthonys was in place when the failed test purchases took place. She 
said that Mr. Anthonys was responsible for the running of the premises 
and referred to the management agreement he had signed which she 
said operated like a franchise agreement and stated that the PLH had 
exercised due diligence.  She also referred to the general improvement 
in the management of the premises with the recent appointment of an 
experienced DPS and referred to the training that had been undertaken 
and the procedures that were in place. She expressed surprise at the 
request for revocation as her understanding was that the police were 
asking for conditions to be added which the PLH had agreed to. 
However, the Committee considered that Mr. Kalamohan, as the 
Premises Licence Holder was ultimately responsible for the premises 

Page 16



and found that there had been little improvement since the failed test 
purchase failure in 2013.  The Committee considered that the premises 
were poorly managed and there was a general lack of compliance 
associated with the premises. The Committee were satisfied that  there 
was a discernible pattern of behaviour whereby no clear responsibility 
had been taken by the PLH and that he was passing off his 
responsibility to the DPS when in fact it was ultimately his responsibility 
to uphold the Licensing Objectives for the licensed premises. 
 

3. The Committee heard that despite having been advised in writing in 
2011, that a fire risk assessment must be undertaken, the premises had 
failed to address these issues until an incident occurred in September 
2017 resulting in serious injury to a member of staff, which required him 
to have surgery. The Committee noted Mr Clark’s submission that the 
incident highlighted health and safety non- compliance issues and also 
revealed the unclear lines of responsibility for health and safety within 
the company. The Committee considered that these failings also 
potentially exposed members of the public to hazard and undermined 
the public safety objective. 

 
4. The Committee heard evidence from Ms Manning that 37 smuggled 

vodka bottles had been found on the premises in February 2016. The 
bottles were found to have counterfeit labels to avoid payment of excise 
duty which the Committee considered to be very serious. The 
Committee were concerned that the premises were being used for the 
sale or storage of smuggled alcohol and were satisfied that the crime 
prevention objective was being undermined. The Committee were not 
satisfied with the PLH’s explanation that the bottles were the 
responsibility of Mr Richard Anthonys, the previous DPS, as it was noted 
that Mr. Kalamohan, had signed a form agreeing to transfer the goods to 
Trading Standards for destruction and ultimately Mr Kalamohan, as the 
Premises Licence Holder was responsible for ensuring compliance with 
the Licensing Objectives. 

 
5. The Committee after having considered all of the information were 

satisfied that the premises, Today’s Local were not upholding the 
Licensing Objectives relating to the Prevention of Crime and Disorder, 
Protection of Children from Harm and Public Safety. The Committee 
decided that given the previous failed test purchases, the activity 
relating to the smuggled vodka bottles, the failure to comply with health 
and safety and fire safety legislative requirements and   the general lack 
of compliance and cooperation with the Responsible Authorities over a 
number of years that revocation was appropriate for the promotion of the 
Licensing Objectives and was proportionate.  

 
6. The Committee considered that the removal of the DPS was not an 

appropriate option, as Mr Devenanden Diraj had only been recently 
appointed and the Committee were satisfied that Mr Kalamohan as PLH 
had overall control and responsibility for the premises.  
 

Page 17



7. The Committee also considered that a suspension of the licence was 
not an appropriate option as the recurring failings associated with the 
premises were longstanding and a short period of closure would not fix 
these issues.  
 

8. The Committee noted the police’s total lack of confidence in the 
Premises Licence Holder in running the premises which was supported 
by the other Responsible Authorities and considered that none of the 
other options available on review would resolve the problems associated 
with the premises and were not appropriate in the circumstances. 

 
 The meeting started at 6.45pm and finished at 9.15pm 

 
Date of publication: 13 December 2017 
 

 
 
arm/rg/lic/mi/061217 

Page 18



 
 

Report of: Meeting Date Item no. 

Mark Broadhurst, 
Service Director 

Health and Wellbeing 
Licensing Committee 25 January 2018 4 

 

Taxi Licensing and Enforcement Policy Review  

 
1. Purpose of report 

 
 1.1 

 
 

To submit the draft Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy, 
Appendix 1 to members for amendment and/or approval, before beginning 
a formal consultation.  
 

2. Outcomes 
 

 2.1 
 
 

Finalise the draft taxi licensing policy and begin a six week consultation 
period.  
 

3. Recommendations 
 

 3.1 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
3.3 
 
 

That the Licensing Committee amend and/or agree the draft Licensing 
Policy. 
 
That the Senior Licensing Officer undertakes a six week consultation with 
the trade and other relevant persons on the draft policy. 
 
The Senior Licensing Officer in consultation with the Chairman, consider 
all the responses received and where appropriate, amend the draft policy, 
before presenting it to the March Licensing Committee meeting, with a view 
to adoption with effect from 1 April 2018. 
 

4. Background 
 

 4.1 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 

The Council has been reliant on its current policy, which has only been 
subject to minor amendments over the last decade, when making decisions 
about the regulation of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trade.  
 
Unlike the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005, which create a 
statutory responsibility on Licensing Authorities to publish their Statement 
of Policy and to review it at least every five years, the legislation concerned 
with the taxi and private hire industry is silent in respect of policy. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 

 
Members will be very aware of a number of high profile, child abuse cases 
in Rotherham, Rochdale and Oxford, amongst others, which resulted in 
some local licensing authorities being quite severely criticised, for 
historically taking too lenient an approach, to the fit and proper test, for 
licensed drivers.     
 
Best practice advocates that all non-statutory policies are reviewed or 
refreshed periodically. To this end, a complete re-write of the Council’s 
policy has been undertaken, to bring it up to date and ensure that the 
approach adopted by the Council in respect of taxi licensing prioritises 
public safety and remains fit for purpose. 
 

5. Key issues and proposals 
 

 5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

When discharging its functions in relation to taxi and private hire licensing 
the council’s overriding concern is Public Safety.  
 
Licensed taxi drivers provide an important service for residents and visitors 
to the Borough, who in turn should be confident that their driver is a fit and 
proper person and that the vehicle is safe and suitable for their needs.  
 
The revised policy seeks to strengthen this approach and in the spirit of 
transparency, sets out clearly the expectation on drivers, vehicle 
proprietors and operators who wish to be licensed by Wyre Council. 
 
It encompasses all of the existing standards applied to applicants for driver, 
vehicle and operator licences and which can be found in the Licensing 
Unit’s published guidance and historic Committee decisions, whilst 
introducing some new standards and requirements that reflect the 
changing nature of the industry and the renewed emphasis on a much 
more vigorous assessment of fit and proper. 
 
The following section details some of the key new requirements that the 
revised policy seeks to introduce: 
 

 A requirement for licensed drivers to register with the Disclosure and 
Barring Service (DBS) update service.  
 
Prior to the introduction of three year licences, applicants were 
required to complete an annual disclosure of convictions each time 
they applied to have their licences renewed. The move to three year 
licences has inadvertently created a gap in the Licensing Authority’s 
ability to assess the offending behaviour of licensed drivers, outside 
this three year renewal period. 
 
By introducing this requirement, which is common among other 
Lancashire Authorities, Wyre can be satisfied that it is able to 
access the most up to date information about the offending 

Page 20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

behaviour of the drivers it licences and routinely audit the DBS 
records throughout the lifetime of a driver’s licence. 
 

 A requirement for a Certificate of Good Conduct from any applicant 
who has lived for more than 6 continuous months outside the UK, in 
the 10 years prior to their first application.  
 
Historically Wyre has had very few applicants who would fall into 
this category, but with the greater movement of people throughout 
European Countries and beyond, applicants who would fall into this 
category are increasing. The Disclosure and Barring Service only 
holds information from the UK legal system and without this 
requirement, Wyre cannot be satisfied as to the existence or 
otherwise, of any relevant offending behaviour outside the UK. 
 

 Unlike some Lancashire Authorities, Wyre does not insist on a 
specific BTEC or NVQ qualification for its drivers, it has instead 
relied on drivers being required to hold a relevant driving licence for 
a minimum of 2 years, by way of demonstrating their competence 
on the roads, before they can be considered for a Dual Driver’s 
Licence. This policy is not seeking to change this approach. 

 

 Wyre has previously allowed a grace period of up to six months for 
drivers who fail to renew their licences, to be exempt from having to 
re-sit the Knowledge Test. This period is proposed to be reduced to 
one month, to discourage licensed drivers from allowing their 
licences to lapse. 
 

 The policy introduces the position that Wyre will not consider 
applications for vehicle licences in respect of cars that have 
previously been written off by insurers as category A, B, or S. It will 
however considering licensing category N write offs. These new 
categories replaced the older A, B, C and D write offs, last October 
2017. 
 

o A relates to vehicles that must be scrapped 
o B relates to vehicles that may be broken and their parts 

reused 
o S relates to vehicles that have sustained structural damage 

that is repairable. 
o N relates to vehicles that have sustained non-structural 

damage that is repairable. 
 
Whilst category S vehicles can potentially be repaired and may then 
be suitable for ordinary social, domestic and pleasure use, licensed 
vehicles are placed under significantly higher demand and must be 
safe and suitable to convey members of the public. It is proposed 
therefore that the Council’s position is that any vehicle that it 
licenses must not have had its structural integrity compromised at 
any time. 

Page 21



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Vehicles must have a current MOT (where required) in addition to 
passing the Council’s own taxi test, undertaken at the Council’s 
Copse Road Testing facility. 
 
Historically Wyre Council has held an exemption certificate for 
vehicles that pass the taxi test, meaning they did not have to have 
a separate MOT. The testing was undertaken by a preferred 
supplier on our behalf, but was not registered on the National 
database that is routinely accessed by Police and other agencies.   
 
In April the taxi test is being brought in-house following the 
successful capital investment in the Copse Road Garage, which has 
now been granted MOT testing status. 
 
The new arrangement will see all vehicles passing the taxi test, 
being issued with an MOT certificate which will be registered on the 
national database The MOT will remain valid even if the vehicle 
ceases to be licensed. Under the current arrangements proprietors 
would have to get a new MOT as soon as their vehicle comes off 
the fleet, to be road legal. 
 

 Factory fitted glass to the front of the driver’s pillar must permit at 
least 70% light through and no vehicle may have any film designed 
to tint or darken windows applied to it. 
 
This new position in respect of ‘privacy’ glass in the rear of vehicles 
is on public safety grounds. Passengers being conveyed in licensed 
vehicles should be clearly visible to anyone outside the vehicle to 
deter unscrupulous drivers from any activity which could 
compromise their passenger’s safety or wellbeing. 
 

 Private Hire Operators will be expected to train all of the dispatch 
staff they employ and who do not also hold dual drivers licences, in 
basic safeguarding and CSE awareness. 
 
Wyre brought in the requirement for all Licensed Operators and 
Drivers to undergo basic training on these topics some time ago.  
 
Non-licensed dispatch staff are in daily contact with some of the 
most vulnerable members of our society and their role gives them a 
perfect opportunity to spot patterns of repeat bookings or other 
circumstances which could be indicative of an underlying 
safeguarding issue.  
 
Without appropriate training however, they may not recognise signs 
of CSE or know how, or to who, they should report suspect 
behaviour. It is proposed to condition Operators to ensure that all 
their non-licensed dispatch staff are appropriately trained, using the 
free training package via Lancashire County Council’s website. 

Page 22



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.6 
 
 
 
 
5.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.8 
 
 
 
 
5.9 
 
 
 
 

 
5.10 
 
 
 
5.11 
 
 

 

 Licensed drivers are currently only required by conditions to 
disclose any new convictions acquired, during the lifetime of their 
licence. This requirement is being extended to include:  
  
o Any conviction or finding of guilt in a civil, criminal or driving 

matter; 

o Any caution issued by the Police or any other agency; 

o Any issue of a Magistrate’s Court summons against them; 

o Any issue of a fixed penalty notice for any matter; 

o Any harassment or other form of warning, or order, within 

criminal law including Criminal Behaviour  Orders or similar; 

o Any arrest for any offence (whether or not subsequently 

charged) 

This is part of the increased scrutiny that all licensed drivers will be 

subject to and goes to assuring our residents and visitors to the 

borough alike, that Wyre Licensed Drivers are fit and proper to hold 

such licences. 

 
Other amendments to the standard conditions on driver, vehicle proprietor 
and operator licence holders, have been drafted to assist licensing officers 
to effectively regulate the trade and to reinforce the high standards of 
behaviour expected from licence holders. 
 
The revised policy also includes an updated statement of policy on 
convictions and other relevant matters which, once adopted, will assist 
members of the Committee, to reach considered and consistent decisions, 
when questions about an individual’s fitness to hold a licence are raised. 
However, the policy is not an immutable policy and every individual case 
should be treated on its own merits 
 
The Local Government Association had produced a template, to assist 
Licensing Authorities to develop their own approach to taxi licensing 
matters and this format was used, when drafting the proposed Convictions 
Policy.  
 
Members will see that the draft Convictions Policy is far more 
comprehensive than the existing one. The proposed policy includes 
matters such as conditional discharges, fixed penalties, reprimands 
credible intelligence, arrests or complaints, even when the CPS take the 
decision not to prosecute. 
 
The Licensing Authority is not required to determine the fit and proper 
standard beyond all reasonable doubt, it merely has to be satisfied on the 
balance of probability, if an individual is, or isn’t, a fit and proper person. 
 
It is entirely correct then that any and all credible information about the 
conduct of an individual is considered, regardless of where or how that 
information originated. 

Page 23



 
5.12 
 
 
 
5.13 
 
 
5.14 
 
 
 

 
The revised policy significantly increases the period of time that should 
elapse after convictions, to between 3 and 10 years, depending on the type 
of offence, before an application would be considered 
 
It also seeks to introduce the principle of refusal for the most serious types 
of violent, sexual or indecency offences.   
 

1. Where the Committee reach a decision, particularly if that decision is to 
refuse to grant or renew, or to revoke a licence, and that decision is 
subsequently challenged in the Magistrates Court, case law states that on 
any appeal, the Court must have regard to the Council’s published policy 
and should not lightly overturn a decision that reflects a properly consulted 
on and adopted policy. However, the Court may depart from the policy if 
they consider there is justification for doing so and if they consider the 
previous decision was wrong. 

  

Financial and legal implications 

Finance 
There are no financial implications arising directly from this 
report 

Legal 

Once adopted members should take into account the 
revised policy when determining private hire and hackney 
carriage applications. However, the policy is not an 
immutable policy and every individual case should be 
treated on its own merits. 
 

 
Other risks/implications: checklist 

 
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with a 
 below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist officers on 
those implications and addressed them in the body of the report. There are no significant 
implications arising directly from this report, for those issues marked with an x. 
 

risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x 

community safety   asset management x 

equality and diversity x  climate change x 

sustainability x  data protection x 

health and safety x  

 

report author telephone no. email date 

Niky Barrett 01253 887236 Nicola.Barrett@wyre.gov.uk 30 12 2017  

 
 
 

Page 24



List of background papers: 

name of document date where available for inspection 

Taxi Licensing & 
Enforcement Policy 

V02 reprint April 
2011 

Licensing section 

 
List of appendices 
 
Appendix 1 - Draft Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy (V03) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
arm/rg/lic/cr/18/2501nb2 

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85

lmilnes
Typewritten Text

lmilnes_1
Typewritten Text

lmilnes_2
Typewritten Text

lmilnes_3
Typewritten Text
arm/rg/lic/cr/18/2501nb2 Appendices



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 87

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of minutes
	Minutes
	 Minutes of meeting 6 December 2017
	061217

	4 Taxi Licensing and Enforcement Policy Review
	6 New applicant for a Wyre dual driver licence with a current motoring conviction and spent criminal convictions



